Supreme Court No. 99271-1
Court of Appeals No. 80543-6-1

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

SYMON MANDAWALA,

Petitioner,

v.

ERA LIVING LLC,

Respondant

AMENDED PETITION FOR REVIEW

Symon Mandawala P.O. Box 5512 San Antonio, Tx 78201

C. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Mandawala is a former employee of the responding corporation Era Living LLC. This case arose from incidents that happened when Mandawala was working at one of the Era Living business facilities namely Aljoya Thonton a Place near Northgate Mall. Mandawala was hired by Era Living LLC on October 10, 2012 and his job was wrongfully terminated that he received unemployment benefit from the department of Unemployment in Washington State.

The events in Mandawala's complaint were on going and per statute of limitation. The first incident happened on February 8, 2016, where his coworkers subjected him a segregated work conduct. The second event happened around March 11, 2016 whereby Mandawala was looking for urgent medical attention and the Manager at the time refused to allow Mandawala to get the medical attention. Although the same manager allowed a fellow white female employee to take the day off for having a cold. Another event happened around April 22, 2016. This time the same manager who denied Mandawala medical attention decided to give a work task to Mandawala which Era Living has been hiring third party professionals to clean the Exhaust Air System. It was the first time for Mandawala to do such higher voltage electric system cleaning and he was severely injured that he is still struggling with the effect of the injury.

Prior to Mandawala's injury, two separate former employees of Era Living were already severely injured with the equipment. One was a former manager who was replaced by the Subject Manager who had a high voltage shock in his head while trying to clean the system. Seconded by a dishwasher who voluntarily tried to clean the same system and he fell down and injured his back. As noted these injuries prior to Mandawala's injury, it is undisputed that Era Living LLC had knowledge of the equipment causing injuries and they ignored that knowledge to order Mandawala to clean the system that ended up causing him injured.

After 2 years of medical treatment from the hip injury sustained while working at Era living, Mandawala filed a lawsuit in Washington State Superior Court in Seattle on February 4, 2019. Since his injury, Mandawala lives in Texas where his relatives are working. Mandawala first attempted to serve Era Living through Friend as in person service process. His friend was frustrated after he was told to wait for someone to pick the court papers at the front desk of Era living home office. The process server left the paper to the front desk the other copies were sent through regular mail to support in person service as the rule 4(d)4,4(e.).

Due to unavailability of Mandawala's friend's declaration on his in person service, Mandawala reserved again the Era Living this time Certified Mail return receipt (Exhibit E) was requested and it was returned on March 25, 2019 in which the envelope was shown to Trial Court that it was arrived as the date on the return receipt by Era Living as an affidavit to support their motion to dismiss. On April 10, 2019, Era-Living made appearance to the court. (see Exhibit C) While the case was pending on April 22, 2019, the counsel for the defendant directed without the Trial Court's consent and told Mandawala that the service he made should be approved in Washington State and if he does

not re-service within 10 days (which is by May 2) Era Living will file a motion to dismiss. (see Exhibit D)

There was no attorney client-relationship between Mandawala and Era Living counsel. These are two separate parties that had opposite interests in this case. Much more, whatever Era Living counsel brings on litigation, is in the best of interest of their client not Mandawala. Still both Appeals Court and Trial Court does not see how inappropriate (see Exhibit H at 28) it is to provide legal advice to the opposite party Exhibit F in the name of being Legal Samaritan.

After April 10, 2019 court appearance, and April 22, 2019 without court consent to provide legal advice to the opponent of their client, on July 26, 2019, Era living filed(see Exhibit D) a motion to dismiss for insufficient of service of process, that 124 days from the date on return receipt (exhibit E), 110 days from the date Era Living made an appearance in court Exhibit C.

The court was notified about deficiency in service of process on August 23, 2019 at the hearing by Era Living for the first time, and denied requeat by Mandawala to exercise its discretion as stated in Sup.CR4h and the case was dismissed. (See Exhibit B)

Mandawala timely filed a notice of appeal to the Washington

State Court of Appeals in division 1 and the court affirmed that the Trial

Court dismissed the case. It further raised a conflict view that the service
of process is strictly and cannot be amended but the Sup.CR4(h)

provides that the court can order any process of service to be amended.

(see Exhibit A) In which raising some of these issues.

D. ARGUMENT

This Court may grant a review where a decision of the Court of Appeals conflicts with a decision of the Supreme Court or a published decision of the Court of Appeals, or presents a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States; or involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by this Court. The issues raised herein meet more than one of these criteria:

ISSUE ONE: DOES THE ERA LIVING MAKING AN APPEARANCE TO THE TRIAL COURT TOLLS THE TIME FOR RAISING INSUFICIENT SERVICE OF PROCESS DEFENSE IN RULE 12(A), FROM 20 DAYS TO 124 DAYS, WITHOUT COURT'S CONSENT TO EXTEND THE 20 DAY PERIOD?

The issue here is a narrow one because a lawsuit does not commence if the plaintiff served improper defendant. This is a different situation to services of process that is insufficient in documents to the proper defendant. In a case where the improper defendant has been served the time of raising insufficient of service tolled until the day such service has been arrived to proper defendant that is when the CR12(a) time starts running out on that proper defendant.

Here in this case the proper defendant (Era Living LLC) was served a complaint that was filed in superior court immediately acknowledged that there was a defense of shortage of documents (insufficient of service of process) but allowing the timeline of raising defense of insufficient of service process of 20 days (see

Sup.CR12(a)) to run out up top 124 days, and then acting as improper defendant? (see Exhibit C & F)

A proper defendant makes an appearance to the court does not constitute a waiver of the defense of insufficient of service of process. But proper defendant untimely or unseasonably filling insufficient service of process defense (without a cause) after making such appearance coconstitute waived a defense of insufficient service of process. if raised such defense of insufficient services of process untimely or unseasonably or with conducts contrary to related claimed or defense by the defendant clearly satisfys the waiver of such defense.

If any proper defendant is served and wait whatever period they would like to raise the defense of insufficient of service as the same as improper defendant or no service at all party does, it will be proper for this court to remove the insufficient of service from Sup.CR12(b). Because Sup.CR12(b) defenses governed by timeline in Sup.CR12(a).

In Federal courts handling the defense of insufficient of service of process, they held that "defendants must not only comply with the letter of the rule only, but also "with spirit of the rule, which is 'to expedite and simplify proceedings in the ***court." id (quoting 5A Charles A. Wright & Arthur R. Miller, Federal Practice and Procedure § 1342 (2d ed. 1990)) see also <u>US v. Ziegler Bolt & Parts Co., 111 F.3d 878, 882 (Fed.Cir.1997)</u> (holding that a defendant's

literal compliance with the procedural rule does not end the waiver analysis)

The 8th Federal Circuit Court went further with a very clear about dangling around with time and conducts of the defendants who claims defense of insufficient of service or personal jurisdiction.

"Failure to assert it **seasonably**, by formal submission in a cause, or by submission through **conduct."** See <u>Yeldell v. Tutt, 913 F.2d 533, 539 (8th Cir. 1990)</u> see also other federal Circuit (insufficient service of process defense 'may be waived by 'formal submission in a cause or by submission through **conduct"**) <u>Trustee of central laborers'</u>

Welfare fund v. lowery 924 F.2d 731, 732 (7th Cir 1991) Quoting Marcial Ucin, S.A. v. SS Galicia, 723 F.2d 994,996-97 (1st Cir 1983)

The 5th Circuit U.S Court of Appeals sorts the delay "without cause" as "sleeping on right" no court has discretion to entertain that delay as it costs the court and is unfair to the party whom such delay is issued. "However, equitable consideration or tolling time is only available in cases presenting "rare and exceptional circumstances" <u>U.S. v. Riggs</u>, 314 F.3d 796, 799 (5th Cir 2013) (emphasis added) and this is "not intended for those who sleep on their rights" <u>Manning v. Epps</u>, 688 F.3d 177, 183 (5th Cir 2012)

Era-Living should not play guardian angel here that their attorney was advising Mandawala in his interest of this case prior to file the motion to dismiss, and is a cause of such delay after make an appearence. (see Exhibit F) That does not support the delay up 124 days "without a cause" to raising insufficiency of service of process

from the date of appearance or mail return receipt. Era Living cannot raise any cause at this level of appeal if it failed to raise it at the Trial Court.

Much more defense attorney demanding (Exhibit F) anything merit to the case from the plaintiff without a court order is prohibited federally and considered intimidation to the court witness. See <u>US v.</u>

<u>Tison H. Claude jr., Marcelino Echevarria and Scan realty Service, inc.,</u>

780 F.2d 1567 (11th cir. 1986) (applied Federal criminal code 18 U.S.C.

1512-15 to defense attorney seek information to the opposition party without court order)

(Court Published Precedents that has been contradicted by Appendix A,B

(1) Raymond v. Fleming., 24 Wn. App. 112, 600 P.2d 614. (1979))

ISSUE TWO: "AS A MATTER OF COURSE" DID THE TRIAL COURT HAD DISCREATION TO DENY MANDAWALA A ONE TIME RIGHT AMENDMENT WHILE ERA LIVING FAILED TO FILE A TIMELY RESPONSIVE PLEADING?

When this issue comes up to the US eleventh circuit court of appeals after the US district court judge dismisses the lawsuit for reasons that Insufficient services of process, the US 11th appeal court looked at the service of process and pleadings. See Williams v. Board of Regents of University System of Geogia, 477 F.3d 1282, 1292 (11th Cir. 2007) The US 11th circuit held that when a plaintiff file a complaint in district (trial) court with pleading in it, those pleadings need the defendant's responsive pleadings for the court to balance the case facts' merit.

The US 11th circuit court found when the defendant does not file a responsive pleading that challenges the complaint's pleadings, The district court lacks the discretion to deny any amendment of the complaint. Because whatever plaintiff amended is what the defendant will respond to and denying the plaintiff such amendment is an abuse of court discretion as it looks, the court has judged the plaintiff without the defendant's side of the story. "When the plaintiff has the right (before responsive pleading filed) to file an amended complaint as a matter of course, the court lacks the discretion to reject the amendment. See <u>Thomas v. Home Depot USA Inc. No. C06-02705 (N.D. Cal. Jul. 25, 2007)</u> (emphasis added) quoting See <u>Williams v. Bo. Reg. Uni of Geogia, 477 F.3d 1282, 1292 at n.6</u>

In Mandawala's case, the trial judge acknowledged that there were defects; the trial judge raised a question if the court has the discretion to allow Mandawala to amend the process. (see Exhibit H pg 28 line 1-2) The same amendment process Era Living attorney was demanding Mandawala without a court order. (See Exhibit F)

By applying the US 11th circuit court opinion, the trial court lacks the discretion to deny the plaintiff of any amendment when the defendant does not file responsive pleading (Answer). It makes that Judge Iveen did luck discretion to deny Mandawala anamendment because Era living did not file responsive pleading (answer). Instead, the court had the CR12(b)5 motion to dismiss filed by Era Living based on insufficient of service of process. (See

Exhibit D) Motion to dismiss is not a responsive pleading as defined in CR7, similar to Federal rules of civil procedures 7.

The Majority of the federal courts have held that ("Motion to dismiss is not a responsive pleading") Mc Gruder v. Phelp, 608 F.2d 1023, 1025 (5th Cir. 1979), (Motion to dismiss not responsive pleading for the purpose of Fed.R.Civ.P 15); Hanraty v. Ostertag, 470 F.2d 1096, 1097(10th Cir. 1972) Miller v. American Export Lines, inc., 313 F.2d 218 n.1(2d Cir. 1963) (Motio for Summary judgment not responsive pleading for purpose of Fed.R.Civ.P 8).

This is also the view of this circuit of federal court of this territory the 9th federal circuit court. A Motion to Dismiss the complaint is not a responsive pleading. Allen v. Veterans Admin 749 F.2d 1386, 1388 (9th Cir 1984) and (Rule 12(b)6 motion to dismiss not a responsive pleading) see Mayes v. Leipziger, 729 F.2d 605, 607 (9th Cir 1984)

The 9th circuit court in Allen's case concluded that even the district court dismiss the case still the plaintiff had the right to amend. This is exactly with Mandawala's case where Mandawala did not allowed neither single amendment.

As noted that the court did not have discretion to deny
Mandawala's request to amend, one wonders why the trial judge
decided to asked Mandawala to give the judge if she has discretion
to amend the process (Exhibit H at 24. line 15-22) when the
wording in rule 4h is as clear as sky in sun day that the court "on its
discretion" meaning the trial court possess discretion to order an

amendment. It did not even require to ask Mandawala such question.

Considering that if defendant doesn't file a responsive pleading a plaintiff as a matter of right has one chance to amend either the process or the complaint. The question could have been gone to Era Living to demonstrate if any legal injury could have occurred to them if Mandawala did amend the process, in which the answer is NOT at ALL since there is no answer.

Even though Mandawala's English is a second language it does not require a university professor of language to differentiate the language in rule 4h of "Process" and "the documents used to that process." More over the word "any process" cannot change to one process of amending summon only. The word "any" means "whatever, more than one, other processes ." that means "whatever process" the court has discretion to order an amendment. "unless it clearly appears that material prejudice would result to the substantial right of the party against whom the process issued." see Rule 4h last clause

One wonders that Appeals court saying in Exhibit A at 9 and 10 "summon" only when the "writ" in that meaning is all submission to the court's including Motions, Declaration,

Subpenors summons and other submissions in courts. Much more Exhibite H demonstrate that mandawala was asking the court to amend under CR4h not what court of appeals referred in Exhibite A of CR15

The Appeals court should not encroach the words of the rule as such means judicial bias.

Court Published Precedents has been contradicted by Appendix

A)

- (1) in re Marriage of Markowski.,50 Wn. App.633, 635-36, 749 P.2d 754(1988) 37
- (2) in re Marriage of Marrison.,26 Wn. App.571, 573-78 613 P.2d 557(1980)

(Issue of first impression to this court)

ISSUE THREE: "AS A MATTER OF EQUAL PROTECTION CLAUSE IN 14TH AMEND" WHILE THE RACIAL CIVIL RIGHT CASE IS PENDING, CAN A CORPORATE DEFENDANT AND THEIR ATTORNEY'S DEMAND PLAINTIFF TO RESERVE THEM WITH PROCESS WITHOUT A COURT PERMITTING SUCH DEMAND AND THREAT WITH DISMISSAL WITHOUT VIOLATING 42 U.S.C 1985 (2)?AND IF THE STATE HAS NO ANTI-DEPRIVATION LAWS, IS IT NORMAL COURSE OF JUSTICE IN WASHNGTON STATE?

Both Appeals Court and Trial court incorrectly viewed the opposite counsel demand of re-service of process exhibite F direct to Mandawala without seeking the court order as a courteous and help to Mandawala (Exhibit A, and H at 28) is undermining the purpose and spirit of the federal statute 42 U.S.C 1985 (2) last clause. Pursuing to the US Supreme Court precedent in Howllet v. Rose (2000) said that if the State has similar law as the federal one, the State Court should exercise the jurisdiction as it could be in Federal court. See Howlett v. Rose, 496 U.S. 356 (1990) ld. At 361-383 (the court applied the U.S Constitution Article VI, clause 2) Mandawala's complaint alleged that he was subject to racial and other indifference work conditions

compared to white coworkers and claimed Federal Act of civil rights Title VII and RCW 49.60.180 (3).

Mandawala pleaded that his former manager subjected to him indifferent racial working conditions when he allowed the a female white coworker named Wendy to seek medical attention but refused to allow Mandawala who was in severe pain to seek urgent dental attention the same day. See Mandawala v. Era Living complaint.

The Federal statute 42 U.S.C 1985(2) last clause requires "racial" or "class based animus" as the same as it like to sister statute 42 U.S.C 1985(3) pursuing to US supreme court in <u>Griffin v.</u>

Breckenridge, 403 U.S. 88, 102 (1971)

Grinffin court *ld* at 88-100, said it does not also require a plaintiff to file a (section 1985(2))(original 1985(3) statute substituted) lawsuit specifically for section 1985 in order for the court to provide protection under the statute as its purpose is to **protect civil rights** litigants rather than **federal tort law**.

Era Living and their attorney directly contacted Mandawala without a court order, and who is racially grieved plaintiff, and demanded re-service of process with the threat of dismissal if Mandawala did not comply to the demand. Both attorney and their client (Era Living) conspired to harass or threat or deter (exhibit F) with the purpose of impeding the course of justice in the Superior Court. See 42 U.S.C 1985(2).

It is why the court was supposedly to be notified either by **timely** motion to dismiss if the intention of contacting Mandawala

was to dismiss his complaint rather than going to Mandawala directly with the demand to reserve Era Living. Or memorandum to the presiding judge, if Era Living's intentions was really for Mandawala to amend the process.

As noted in issue #1 that federally, it is prohibited for defendant's attorney to make such contact to the plaintiff and it considered intimidation and harassment that violates federal criminal code. Era Living cannot say their attorney's action is part of one party action to deny conspiracy to intimidate Mandawala because the conduct is classified as fraudulant or criminal federally, and intracorporation doctrine cannot be used on witness intimidation or harassment. See all federal court exempting conduct classified as criminal conspiracy exempting intra-corporation.

First, Fifth, Six, Eighth and Nineth Eleventh Circuits Federal

Courts hold that any criminal or fraud conspiracy whether raised by a

prosecutor or an individual in section 1985 claim intracorporation doctrine

defense is exempted or does not apply McAndrews v. JA Blackwell Jr.,

T.A. Graham, et al.,177 F.3d 1310 (11th Cir. 1999) see 1st Circuit in US v.

Peters 732 F.2d 1004, 1007-08 (1st Cir. 1984), 5th Circuit in Dussouy v.

Gulf Coast investment Corp.,660 F.2d 594, 603 (5th Cir. 1981) 6th circuit in

US v. Ames Sintering Co., 927 F.2d 232, 236 (6th Cir. 1990) (quoting that

"'in the criminal context a corporation may be convicted of conspiracy

with its offers'") regardless who brought the claim of that criminal conduct.

See(US v. S Vee Cartage Co., 704 F.2d 914, 920 (6th Cir 1983) 8th circuit in

US v. Hugh Chalmers Chevrolet-Toyota, inc 800 F.2d 737, 738 (8th Cir.

1986) and 9th Circuit in US v. Hughes Aircraft Co., 20 F.3d 974, 978-79 (9th Cir. 1994)

Therefore, both the Trial court and the Appeals Court harmonizing exhibite F the Harassment and intimidation that is federally a criminal conduct is an errorneus view that undermines the purpose 42 U.S.C 1985(2) as it protect any racial or class based animas litigant in state courts. (See especially Dussouy court where Attorney conspired with client corporation) Moreover since Mandawala made a formal notification of the defendant's attorney's out of court demands without court order to do so, the view by trial court on Exhibit H at 28 undermined the purpose and the spirit of the section 1982(2) which is to "protect civil rights litigants and witness" seeking civil right justice in state court like what Mandawala did.

Era Living demands were not really in good faith in considering the 124 days of filing Exhibit D insufficient service of process defense as the trial court reasoning on Exhibit H page 28 and the Appeals court holding it as appropriet is an erra of judicial view. It is why this court should reverse the lower court decisions because allowing this to be as it is, the corporate defendants will intimidate victims knowingly there is no protection for plaintiffs in Washington State courts. That will open a door to undermine the similar state law RCW 49.60.180 and make it worthless statute if its sister statue of federal 42 USC 2000e will not be considered wisely.

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