FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 12/31/2020 1:48 PM BY SUSAN L. CARLSON CLERK

No. 99271-1

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

SYMON B. MANDAWALA

Appellant,

v.

ERA LIVING, LLC

Respondent,

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

FOX ROTHSCHILD LLP

Skylar Sherwood, WSBA #31896 Attorneys for Respondent 1001 Fourth Avenue, Suite 4500 Seattle, WA 98154 Phone: (206) 624-3600 Fax: (206) 389-1708

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

VI. ARGUMENT FOR DENIAL OF PETITION FOR REVIEW

The Court should deny Mandawala's Petition for Review because he has not demonstrated that review should be granted under any of the provisions of RAP 13.4(b). Under RAP 13.4(b), a petition for review will be granted by this Court only if the Court of Appeals' decision (1) conflicts with a decision of the Supreme Court; (2) conflicts with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; (3) involves a "significant question" of constitutional law; or (4) involves "an issue of substantial

public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court."

Mandawala fails to address these factors in his petition, and instead focuses exclusively on rehashing various meritless arguments that have already been considered and rejected by the Court of Appeals or makes new arguments raised for the first time in his Petition that should be disregarded.

- A. The Court of Appeals' Decision Is Consistent with

 Washington Precedent, Does Not Implicate a Significant

 Question of Constitutional Law, and Does Not Present
 an Issue of Substantial Public Interest.
 - 1. <u>Dismissal of Mandawala's Claims Due to</u>
 <u>Insufficient Service of Process Was Legally and</u>
 <u>Substantively Correct.</u>

The Court of Appeals' decision affirming the dismissal of Mandawala's claims against Era Living due to insufficient service of process is premised on long-standing Washington precedent. "Proper service of the summons and complaint is a prerequisite to a court's obtaining jurisdiction over a party." *Harvey v. Obermeit*, 163 Wn. App. 311, 318, 261 P.3d 671 (2011); *Interior Warehouse Co. v. Hays*, 91 Wash. 507, 512, 158 P. 99 (1916) (Jurisdiction over a party can "only be obtained by service of proper process upon it"). CR 4(d)(1) and (2) in combination provide that "[t]he summons and complaint shall be served together" and that "[p]ersonal service of summons and other process shall be as provided

in RCW 4.28.080-.090, 23B.05.040, 23B.15.100, 46.64.040, and 48.05.200 and .210, and other statutes that provide for personal service."

Of these statutes, RCW 4.28.080(9), which applies to service of process against a company, governs Mandawala's service efforts. RCW 4.28.080(9) requires that process against a company "shall be served . . . to the president or other head of the company or corporation, the registered agent, secretary, cashier or managing agent thereof or to the secretary, stenographer or office assistant of the president or other head of the company or corporation, registered agent, secretary, cashier or managing agent." Statutory service requirements, like those in RCW 4.28.080, are mandatory requirements that "must be complied with in order for the court to finally adjudicate" a dispute between parties. *Weiss v. Glemp*, 127 Wn.2d 726, 734, 903 P.2d 455 (1995).

When a defendant challenges proper service, as Era Living did, the plaintiff has the initial burden of proof to establish a prima facie case of proper service. *Northwick v. Long*, 192 Wn. App. 256, 261, 364 P.3d 1067 (2015). As the Court of Appeals accurately stated, Mandawala "did not introduce any evidence, such as a declaration of the process server, to establish a prima facie case of proper service." Opinion at 5. The Court of Appeals further noted that, beyond his failure to properly serve Era Living, none of Mandawala's mailings contained a summons as required

by CR 4(d)(1). *Id.* at 7. Due to the deficiencies in Mandawala's service of process, the Court of Appeals correctly concluded that Mandawala failed to meet his burden of showing a prima facie case of proper service and affirmed the dismissal of Mandawala's claims consistent with Washington precedent. Opinion at 8.

2. The Court of Appeals Correctly Held that CR 15 and CR 4(h) Do Not Apply to Allow Mandawala to Amend His Summons or His Service of Process.

The Court of Appeals properly affirmed the trial court's refusal to allow Mandawala to amend his summons and service of process under CR 15 and CR 4(h). Petition at 15-18. As the Court of Appeals held, CR 15 allows a party to amend its pleadings, but the trial court's dismissal was based on insufficient service of process, not the fact that Mandawala incorrectly named Era Living as "Era Living at ATP." Nor does CR 15 apply to amendment of a summons. Opinion at 9. Further, while CR 4(h) grants the trial court discretion to "allow any process or proof of service thereof to be amended," the rule does not permit a party to amend defective service of process. *Id.* at 10; *see Sammamish Pointe Homeowners Ass'n v. Sammamish Pointe LLC*, 116 Wn. App. 117, 124, 64 P.3d 656 (2003) (citing *Whitney v. Knowlton*, 33 Wash. 319, 322, 74 P.

469 (1903)) ("[a] failure to accomplish personal service of process is not a defect that can be cured by amendment of paperwork").³

Mandawala cites to two cases—without any explanation or argument—that he appears to contend are in conflict with the Court of Appeals' decision with regard to amendment of his pleadings. *See* Petition at 19 citing *In re Marriage of Markowski*, 50 Wn. App. 633, 635-36, 749 P.2d 754 (1988) and *In re Marriage of Morrison*, 26 Wn. App. 571, 573-78, 613 P.2d 557 (1980). Neither case conflicts with the Court of Appeals' decision.

In *Markowski*, Mrs. Markowski failed to serve Mr. Markowski with the petition for dissolution or a summons; Mr. Markowski filed a motion to vacate the petition for lack of personal jurisdiction. 50 Wn. App. at 636-37. Mrs. Markowski unsuccessfully argued that her petition for dissolution was actually a CR 15(a) amendment to her earlier petition for legal separation, which had been properly served on Mr. Markowski several months earlier, thereby eliminating the need for service of a new summons. *Id.* at 636. The court disagreed. Similarly, Mandawala's various

_

³ Mandawala cites to various federal cases, none of which addresses amending process in a way that would overcome a plaintiff's failure to serve a summons. Petition at 15-18. The cases Mandawala cites address a plaintiff's ability to amend his or her complaint as a matter of course when the proposed amendment does not affect claims against defendants who have already filed responsive pleadings. *See* Petition at 16 citing *Williams v. Bd. of Regents of Univ. Sys. of Ga.*, 477 F.3d 1282, 1291 (11th Cir. 2007) and *Thomas v. Home Depot USA Inc.*, 527 F.Supp.2d 1003, 1005 (N.D. Cal. 2007). Amendment of pleadings is not at issue here.

mailings to Era Living were not CR 15(a) amendments to prior, properly served pleadings such that no summons would be necessary. There is no conflict between the two decisions.

In *Morrison*, the Court of Appeals affirmed the trial court's dismissal of the case where the defendant was served in his personal capacity instead of in his representative capacity as a trustee and the plaintiff had not submitted a motion to amend service to reflect the proper capacity of the defendant. 26 Wn. App. at 574. *Morrison* is not instructive because the trial court's dismissal of Mandawala's claims was based on his failure to properly serve Era Living with the complaint and summons, not his misidentification of the defendant. There is no inconsistency between *Morrison* and the Court of Appeals' decision.

Mandawala does not and, indeed, cannot establish that the Court of Appeals' holdings in the above respects conflict with other decisions of this Court or the Court of Appeals, present a question of constitutional law, or implicate a substantial public interest.

B. Mandawala's Remaining Arguments Are Raised for the First Time on Appeal and Should be Disregarded, and, In Any Event, Do Not Meet the Criteria in RAP 13.4(b).

Mandawala's remaining arguments are that: (1) Era Living waived the insufficient service of process defense by dilatorily raising it in its motion to dismiss, (2) counsel for Era Living's communications with him

allegedly violated 42 U.S.C. § 1985 and (3) constituted improper legal advice. Petition at 12-14, 19-24. At the outset, each of these arguments should be disregarded as they were not argued to the trial court. *Sourakli v. Kyriakos, Inc.*, 144 Wn. App. 501, 509, 182 P.3d 985 (2008) *review denied* 165 Wn.2d 1017 (2009) ("[a]n argument neither pleaded nor argued to the trial court cannot be raised for the first time on appeal."). And while novel arguments may be raised on appeal when they address a "manifest error affecting a constitutional right," no constitutional issue is presented or even argued here. APP 2.5(a). Should the Court consider the merits of these new arguments, they do not meet any of the criteria in RAP 13.4(b) and Era Living requests that Mandawala's Petition be denied.

1. <u>Era Living Did Not Waive Insufficient Service of Process Defense By Being Dilatory.</u>

Mandawala contends that, under CR 12(a), Era Living waived its insufficient service of process defense because it raised it for the first time in its motion to dismiss, which Mandawala contends was dilatorily filed more than 20 days after alleged service. Petition at 12-14. Proper service

10

⁴ Indeed, the only time Mandawala refers to any implication of constitutional law in his Petition is in the heading to his argument that counsel for Era Living's communications with him violated 42 U.S.C. § 1985(2), in which he references the "Equal Protection Clause in 14th Amend." Petition at 19. The nature of Mandawala's 42 U.S.C. § 1985(2) argument is discussed more fully below. Suffice it to say, however, that he advances no argument to support the reference in the heading and no constitutional impact is generally apparent.

of the summons and complaint starts the timeline for filing a responsive pleading under CR 12(a). As the Court of Appeals correctly noted, Mandawala neither properly served Era Living nor included a summons in any of his various mailings to Era Living. Opinion at 7. Accordingly, Era Living had no duty to answer Mandawala's complaint within 20 days and its motion to dismiss timely raised the defense of insufficient service of process under CR 12(b)(5).

Further, a defendant waives a defense through dilatory conduct only where such conduct is "purposeful or misleading" and the defendant's conduct is "inconsistent with the assertion of the defense." *Lybbert v. Grant Cty. State of Wash.*, 141 Wn.2d 29, 46, 1 P.3d 1124 (2000). Counsel for Era Living never misled Mandawala about Era Living's assertion of its insufficient service defense. Rather, in every communication sent to Mandawala, Era Living's counsel asserted that proper service had not been completed and promptly moved to dismiss for lack of proper service after it became clear that Mandawala had no intention of properly serving Era Living. CP 108, 283-84.

_

⁵ Mandawala's further suggestion that Era Living's counsel's communications with him were threatening, intimidating, or deceitful (Petition at 15) was expressly addressed and discredited by the Court of Appeals based on the clear evidence in the record of those communications. Opinion at 12.

Mandawala relies on inapposite federal cases for his waiver argument. He first cites *U.S. v. Ziegler Bolt & Parts Co.*, in which the court affirmed dismissal of the plaintiff's claims because the defendant was not properly served, even though the defendant participated in litigation for two years prior to seeking dismissal. 111 F.3d 878 (Fed. Cir. 1997). *Ziegler* supports affirming dismissal of Mandawala's claims.

Mandawala's reliance on *Yeldell v. Tutt*, 913 F.2d 533 (8th Cir. 1990), and Trustees of Cent. Laborers' Welfare Fund v. Lowery, 924 F.2d 731 (7th Cir. 1991), is also misplaced. In both cases, the courts disallowed insufficient service of process defenses because the defendants had been dilatory in raising the defense, but the facts of each are materially different than this one. In Yeldell, the defendants participated in discovery, filed various motions, participated in a five-day trial, and filed post-trial motions before seeking to assert a service of process defense once the case was on appeal. 913 F.2d at 539. In *Lowery*, the court refused to set aside a default judgment against the defendant based on a theory of insufficient service of process where "the defendants participated in post-judgment proceedings [for] almost six years during which time [defendants] never raised a question as to the adequacy of the original service." 924 F.2d at 732. Era Living, in contrast, has consistently asserted its insufficient service of process defense and moved to dismiss on the same basis prior to filing any responsive pleading or engaging in any litigation of Mandawala's claims.⁶

Finally, while Mandawala did not raise to the Court of Appeals the specific waiver argument that he now raises in his Petition, Mandawala nonetheless appears to contend that the Court of Appeals' decision is somehow contradicted by *Raymond v. Fleming*, 24 Wn. App. 112, 600 P.2d 614 (1979), but he advances no argument supporting this assertion. Petition at 15. In *Raymond*, the Court of Appeals held that the defendants waived their insufficient service of process defense by engaging in dilatory conduct where they repeatedly delayed responding to the plaintiff's complaint, failed to respond to plaintiff's discovery requests, and obtained two continuances before eventually raising an insufficient service of process defense more than nine months after entering a notice of appearance. 24 Wn. App. at 115. Those facts do not exist here.

-

⁶ The other cases Mandawala cites are inapplicable to the issues considered by the Court of Appeals. *U.S. v. Riggs* is a Fifth Circuit criminal case addressing equitable tolling on the statute of limitations for motion of collateral relief. 314 F.3d 796, 799 (5th Cir. 2002). *Manning v. Epps* is a Fifth Circuit criminal case addressing equitable tolling of the Antiterrorism and Effective Death Penalty Act. 688 F.3d 177, 182 (5th Cir. 2012). ⁷ To the Court of Appeals, Mandawala argued that Era Living engaged in dilatory conduct and thereby waived the insufficient service of process defense by making allegedly deceptive statements in its correspondence with him. The Court of Appeals correctly rejected this argument, concluding that the correspondence "was neither deceitful nor dilatory." Opinion at 12.

2. <u>Era Living and its Counsel Did Not Violate 42</u> U.S.C. § 1985 or Give Improper Legal Advice.

Mandawala appears to allege that, under 42 U.S.C. § 1985(2), Era Living and its counsel unlawfully conspired to prevent him from exercising his civil rights⁸ and that counsel for Era Living violated ethical rules by telling Mandawala that he had not completed proper service, which he contends amounted to legal advice. Petition at 19-24. There was no conspiracy or violation of the Rules of Professional Conduct ("RPC").

The sole basis for Mandawala's assertions is Era Living's counsel's emails to him in which counsel informed Mandawala, a pro se plaintiff, that he had not successfully completed service on Era Living. As a courtesy, counsel provided Mandawala with a link to the civil rules, but, correctly, did not provide Mandawala with legal advice regarding service (for example, there is no discussion of how to properly serve a party or which rule to follow). CP 108-109, 112. When Mandawala contended in his response to counsel's initial letter that he had completed proper service, counsel again stated Era Living's position that proper service had not been completed and again referred Mandawala to the link to the Civil

⁸ 42 U.S.C. § 1985(2), in relevant part, prohibits individuals from conspiring to obstruct or impede "the due course of justice . . . with intent to deny to any citizen the equal protection of the laws, or to injure him or his property for lawfully enforcing, or attempting to enforce, the right of any person, or class of persons, to the equal protection of the laws[.]"

Rules she had previously provided. CP 112. This was not intimidation or legal advice, but normal communication between parties in litigation—which would have occurred even if Mandawala was represented by an attorney—in which they professionally express their respective positions. After this correspondence, Era Living provided Mandawala with time to complete proper service before filing its Motion to Dismiss. These communications do not evidence any conspiracy that would violate 42 U.S.C. § 1985(2) or constitute legal advice.

VII. <u>CONCLUSION</u>

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